
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Haynes

AGENDA April 15, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Haynes

Minutes Recessed Meeting - March 25, 2015

Minutes Agenda Meeting - March 25, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - April 1, 2015

Report Compliance with Three Star Program

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission  - Todd Leamon April 13, 2015

Res. No. 415-13 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, continuation
certificates for the bonds of Hamilton County 911 Emergency Communications district,  and
oaths of Deputy Sheriffs.

Res. No. 415-14 A Resolution to appoint a regular member to the Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals, and
to appoint (2) two associate members thereof.

Res. No. 415-15 A Resolution to confirm the appointment by the County Mayor of Thomas Lamb as Director of
the Parks and Recreation Department.

Res. No. 415-16 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees for a term ending April 18,
2019.

Res. No. 415-17 A Resolution accepting the bid of On Duty Depot for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning
April 15, 2015 through April 14, 2016, for vehicle upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles
and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-18 A Resolution accepting the bid of Diversified Companies, LLC for a three (3) year contract for
printing and processing Delinquent Tax Summons, beginning April 15, 2015 through April 14,
2018, with renewal options, for the Trustee’s Office and to authorize the County Mayor to sign
any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-19 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to appropriate $250,000 from bond proceeds to
reimburse the Stadium Corporation for replacement of the stadium field surface.

Res. No. 415-20 Resolution Pulled

Res. No. 415-21 A Resolution authorizing the payment of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) in
settlement of an alleged wrongful death claim against Hamilton County as brought by the
parents and next friends of Austin Dakota Wallace.

Res. No. 415-22 A Resolution to authorize payment of $31,111.49 to Farmers Insurance Company for property
damage incurred by their insured as a result of an automobile accident with a Hamilton County
Highway Department vehicle.

Res. No. 415-23 A Resolution accepting the highest and best bid for certain parcels of property acquired by
Hamilton County through previous delinquent tax sales and authorizing the County Mayor and
County Trustee to enter into and execute deeds conveying said parcels to individuals listed
herein below.

Res. No. 415-24 A Resolution accepting the bid of Electronic Controls, Inc. for HVAC controls modifications for
the Hamilton County Corrections Building amounting to $20,400.00 and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-25 A Resolution approving a software support and maintenance contract from ESRI, Inc. for one (1)
year, beginning June 9, 2015, through June 8, 2016, for the Geographic Information Systems
Department amounting to $74,344.45 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 415-26 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of February 1,
2015, through February 28, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-27 A Resolution approving the purchase of flu vaccine from Novartis, Sanofi-Pasteur, McKesson
Med-Surg MN Supply, at statewide contract pricing and, if necessary, other firms at the lowest
and best available pricing quote for the Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-28 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a Co-Applicant Agreement with the Co-Applicant Board of the Homeless Health Care
Center (HHC) as required by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

Res. No. 415-29 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign an  amendment contract  with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$147,292.00 to provide Health Care Safety Net Primary Care Services to uninsured adults in
Hamilton County at the Homeless Health Care Center for the time period July 1, 2014 through
June 30, 2015.

Res. No. 415-30 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company for a Tobacco
Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign for an initial twelve (12) week period amounting to
$16,650.00, with renewal options amounting to $27,750.00 per campaign, for the Health
Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-31 A Resolution authorizing the payment of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000.00) in
settlement of a lawsuit against Hamilton County as brought by Nicholas Agostinacchio, et al. for
injuries sustained as a result of a fall on property jointly owned by Hamilton County and the City
of Chattanooga.

Res. No. 415-32 A Resolution authorizing repayment to the County General Fund from the Hamilton County
Department of Education's subsequent year's revenue growth of appropriations paid on behalf of
the Department of Education, as approved and requested by the Hamilton County School Board
for Public Education Projects submitted during a current fiscal year, as may be approved by this
County Legislative body.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 25, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of March, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. Chief Deputy 

Clerk Debbie Rollins called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  Total 

present - 8.  Total absent – 1. Commissioner Boyd was absent. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 The Trustee’s Excess Fee Report and Monthly Report for February 2015 would 
be submitted for the record. 

 Resolution No. 415-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries. This 
required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution No. 415-2 was assigned to the Security and Corrections Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Mackey. 

 Resolution Nos. 415-3, 415-5, 415-7 through 415-10, and 415-12 were assigned 
to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

 Resolution No. 415-11 was assigned to the Roads Committee, chaired by 
Commissioner Haynes. 

 Resolution Nos. 415-4 and 415-6 were heard by a Committee of the Whole. 
 

Chairman Fields stated that Resolutions No. 415-4 and 415-6 would now be 

heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 415-4 

 

Sam Mairs, Juvenile Court Administrator, spoke regarding this item, which 

authorized the County Mayor to sign a contract amendment between the State of 

Tennessee Department of Human Services and the Hamilton County Juvenile Court 

Title IV-D Child Support Division. He noted this year’s budget for 2015 - 2016 is $34,000 

less than last year’s 2014 – 2015 budget. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 3

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 415-6 

 

Mayor Coppinger and Commissioner Graham spoke regarding this item, which 

accepts bids of CWC, LLC and NOI Chattanooga for furniture for the Criminal and 

Sessions Courts amounting to $81,857.23. NOI Chattanooga is supplying seven of the 

requested chairs for Sessions Court and CWC, LLC is providing the remainder for both 

courts. Both vendors are local and the bid came in with a $4,987 savings. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

Commissioner Mackey, Chairman of the Security and Corrections Committee, 

announced the Security and Corrections Committee would meet in the conference room 

following today’s Finance Committee meeting. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads, Waste, Energy, Transportation 

and Zoning Committee, announced the committee would meet in the conference room 

following today’s meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 4

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that 

the committee would meet in the Commission Room following today’s meeting. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that a resolution appropriating $250,000 to the 

Stadium Corporation for the purchase of artificial turf for Finley Stadium will be 

presented to the Commission at the next agenda session. The City of Chattanooga will 

pay an equal amount towards the cost.  The artificial turf will be manufactured by Dalton 

based AstroTurf, the industry leader. He noted that the continued operation of Finley 

Stadium is in the best interest of Hamilton County.  

 

Paul Smith, Stadium Director, gave an explanation of the handouts the 

Commission and County Clerk’s office received. He said the new field will allow soccer 

as well as football at the stadium that is owned by the city and county. Mr. Smith said he 

is in talks with the National Soccer Association on bringing national events to Finley 

Stadium. He is also working to bring concerts to the stadium. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 5

In response to questions from the Commission, Mr. Smith reported that the life 

expectancy of artificial turf is around ten years. He spoke about Chattanooga’s 

Quarterback Club at Finley Stadium and encouraged the Commission to attend.  

 

In closing Mayor Coppinger reported financing will be provided through the 

County’s bond funds.  

 

Commissioner Haynes reported that he thoroughly enjoyed participating in the 

Dash for Down Syndrome 5k on March 21st.  

 

Commissioner Mackey expressed concern regarding the number of waste tires 

littering the county, Mayor Coppinger reported that an individual caught illegally 

disposing of tires can be cited to court. Don Gorman, Director of Administration for the 

Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office, stated that he would make the department aware of 

this situation.  

 

Todd Leamon, Public Works Administrator and County Engineer, made it known 

that the Silverdale Recycle Center has a waste tire recycling program.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 6

Commissioner Fairbanks reported that the 2016 Soddy Daisy Distinguished 

Young Woman is Hannah Stimart. The program was held at Soddy Elementary School 

on Saturday March 21st.  

 

Commissioner Smedley thanked Councilman Larry Grohn, Commissioner 

Haynes, Mr. Leamon, and John Bridger, Executive Director at Regional Planning 

Agency for attending the East Brainerd community information forum on March 23rd. 

Highlights of the meeting involved the Erlanger East Hospital expansion, progress on 

the new E. Brainerd Elementary school, and various road projects.    

 

Commissioner Beck thanked everyone who attended the community listening 

forum on March 23rd.  He acknowledged recent news articles regarding the school 

officials presenting a budget for 2015 – 2016 that includes a forty cent property tax 

increase.  In closing, he asked that copies of Resolution No. 1111-16A be distributed to 

the Commission. He requested this resolution be discussed during next week’s 

commission meeting. 

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that the Chattanooga Chamber will present its 

Small Business Awards at the 33rd annual Small Business Awards Luncheon today, 

from 11:30 a.m. – 1 p.m. at the Chattanooga Convention Center.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 7

Chairman Fields reported there will be a Hamilton County Audit Committee 

meeting today in the conference room after the Finance Committee and Roads, Waste, 

Energy, Transportation and Zoning Committee meetings. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Sandy Hughes, President of the Hamilton County Education Association, made a 

plea for more money for the school system. She stated various needs for additional 

school revenues; educational technology, infrastructure support, instructional resources, 

and teacher/administration support. She noted that the school system is under 

increasing mandates, including a recent one to start teaching keyboarding in the third 

grade.  

 

In response to Ms. Hughes comments, Commissioner Graham thanked her for 

commenting and stated he did not support a forty cent property tax increase this year. 

Highlights from Commissioner Graham’s remarks included school finances, the Board 

of Education’s fund balance, school enrollment figures, and teacher salaries. He pointed 

out that Pilot agreements do not exempt payment of taxes due to the school system.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 8

He voiced a reminder that revenue growth from business investments also resulted in 

benefiting the educational system.  

 

Commissioner Beck sympathized with the school system and expressed his 

support for education. He also said he had previously asked school officials to provide 

him with a $2.3 million receipt; he has yet to receive it. He noted that he would not ask 

again.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks thanked Ms. Hughes for her presentation.  

 

In response to questions raised by Commissioner Fairbanks, Al Kiser, County 

Finance Administrator, confirmed that discretionary funds can be spent on computers 

for the school system.  

 

Commissioner Graham spoke in regards to Resolution No. 215-27A, which 

committed the proceeds from the sale of East Brainerd Elementary School to be equally 

divided among the nine County Commission School Districts. He stated district 6 

intended to spend their portion equally for technology in all schools in his district. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 
 

 9

 

Commissioner Mackey noted that Superintendent Rick Smith is on record 

supporting a forty cent property tax increase. He suggested the school board members 

publicly state where they stand on the proposed property tax increase. He spoke about 

the recent suit filed against the state of Tennessee alleging inadequate funding from the 

state for the schools. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, April 1st at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 

__________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 25, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of March, 2015, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, Chief Deputy 

Clerk Debbie Rollins called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner  Beck, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8.  Total absent -1. 

 

Chairman Fields reported Commissioner Boyd was in the hospital and he would 

not be in attendance today. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 

2 
 

Commissioner Fields introduced County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, who gave the 

invocation.  Commissioner Fields led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business for the 

Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Commissioner Graham spoke about recent news articles regarding County 

school officials presenting to the School Board a proposed budget that would require a 

forty cent tax increase. He announced that he would not support a property tax 

increase. If a property tax increase is approved, he asked the Commission to consider 

implementing a senior tax freeze.  

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 25, 2015 
 

3 
 

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

     Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  April 1, 2015 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 1st day of April, 2015, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Haynes introduced Pastor Gary Armes, Sr, Hickory Valley 

Christian Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Haynes led in the pledge to 

the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of March 12, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of March 12, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of March 18, 2015, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for February 2015 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

3 

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for February 2015 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 415-1. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 415-4 be considered at this time.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

4 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-4  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH THE STATE OF TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY JUVENILE 

COURT TITLE IV-D CHILD SUPPORT DIVISION. 

  

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 415-4 was heard by the Committee 

of the Whole.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 415-4.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

5 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-6  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CWC, LLC 

AND NOI CHATTANOOGA FOR FURNITURE FOR THE CRIMINAL AND SESSIONS 

COURTS AMOUNTING TO $81,857.23 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 415-6 was heard by the Committee 

of the Whole.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 415-6.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 6. Total “Nay” 

votes – 3. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

6 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-2  A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING TWO (2) JUDICIAL 

COMMISSIONERS FOR A ONE (1) YEAR TERM, COMMENCING MAY 1, 2015, AND 

EXPIRING APRIL 30, 2016; DESIGNATING A CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER 

AND ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED BY EACH DURING 

THEIR RESPECTIVE TERM(S) IN OFFICE. 

 

 Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 415-2 was heard by the Security 

and Corrections Committee. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey, Chairman of the Security and Corrections Committee, 

spoke regarding this resolution which reappointed Randall L. Russell, Chief Judicial 

Commissioner, and Sharetta T. Smith, Judicial Commissioner.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 415-2. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

7 

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s concerns, Attorney Taylor clarified that 

Resolution No. 415-2 appointed Randall L. Russell as Chief Judicial Commissioner. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-11  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO CHANGE THE ROADWAY NAME FOR 

THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD: ELIZ CREST ROAD TO ELIZABETH CREST 

ROAD. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 415-11 was heard by Roads, 

Waste, Energy, Transportation and Zoning Committee. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads, Waste, Energy, Transportation 

and Zoning Committee, provided details regarding Resolution No. 415-11 and stated 

that the Roads Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 415-11. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

8 

 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields report that Resolution Nos. 415-3, 415-5, 415-7 through 415-10, 

and 415-12 were heard by the Finance Committee and asked to consider them together 

at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-3  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ACCEPT THE DONATION OF FIRST AID RELATED ITEMS FROM THE 

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF POLICE OFFICERS (IBPO) WITH AN 

ESTIMATED VALUE OF $1,498. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-5  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXTENSION OF THE 

CONTRACT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND FIRST TENNESSEE BANK TO 

PROVIDE BANKING SERVICES AND LOCK BOX PAYMENT PROCESSING 

SERVICES FOR THE COUNTY TRUSTEE FOR A PERIOD OF UP TO TWO (2) 

YEARS BEGINNING JUNE 8, 2015 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY TRUSTEE 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-7  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF 

PCMG, INC. FOR MICROSOFT CLIENT ACCESS LICENSES AND WINDOWS 

SERVER LICENSES, BEGINNING MAY 15, 2015 THROUGH MAY 14, 2016, WITH 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

9 

 

THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, FOR 

THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 

THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-8  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT WITH UNITED HEALTH 

CARE PLAN OF THE RIVER VALLEY, INC. FOR HEALTH SERVICES PROVIDED 

BY THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-9  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF EVS 

EMERGENCY VEHICLE SPECIALIST FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT UNIT 

PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 17, 2015, THROUGH APRIL 16, 2016, FOR 

PROTECTIVE CLOTHING FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-10  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BLACKFOX 

TACTICAL FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 17, 2015, 

THROUGH APRIL 16, 2016, FOR BODY ARMOR AND EQUIPMENT FOR 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

10 

 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 415-12  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHERWIN 

WILLIAMS COMPANY AND ENNIS PAINT, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT 

PRICING, BEGINNING MAY 1, 2015, THROUGH APRIL 30, 2016, FOR 

WATERBORNE HIGHWAY TRAFFIC PAINT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 415-3, 415-5, 415-7 through 415-10, and 415-12 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 415-3, 415-5, 415-7 through 415-10, and 415-12. 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding Resolution No. 415-10 and stated the 

Blackfox Tactical soft body armor meets requirements and standards.  

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

11 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

DISCUSSION: SENIOR PROPERTY TAX FREEZE 

  

In response to Commissioner Graham’s comments at last week’s meeting 

indicating a desire to revisit the senior property tax freeze legislation, Chairman Fields 

stated the matter would be assigned to the Legal and Legislative Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Bankston. He referenced the Constitution of the State of Tennessee, 

Article 2, Section 28. In closing he asked Commissioner Bankston to report back to the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Mackey asked that veterans be considered when discussing a 

property tax freeze. 

 

Clerk Knowles indicated there was an Attorney General opinion available related 

to this topic.  Chairman Fields asked Clerk Knowles to forward the various Attorneys’ 

general opinions regarding tax relief to Commissioner Bankston, Chairman of the Legal 

and Legislative Committee.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

12 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Haynes acknowledged that today’s meeting fell on April Fools’ 

Day. 

 

Commissioner Graham wished everyone a Happy Easter and thanked his family 

for being present in today’s audience. 

 

Commissioner Boyd reported a community meeting will take place in his district 

at the East Ridge Community Center, April 2nd at 6:30 pm.  

 

Commissioner Bankston reported there will be a Hamilton County Audit 

Committee meeting immediately after the April 8th agenda session. He asked that this 

serve as the official public notice of that meeting. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks publicly recognized that Chelsea Johnson, a senior at 

Sale Creek High School, was present in today’s audience. He reported Ms. Johnson 

was shadowing him to fulfill the requirements for her senior project. He thanked Ms. 

Johnson for her presence.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

13 

 

Commissioner Smedley wished everyone a Happy Easter. 

 

 Chairman Fields publicly recognized that Hamilton County Department of 

Education Vice Chair, Donna Horne, District 7, was present in today’s audience. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Donna Horne, Chairman of Business and Community Relations Committee of the 

school board, residing at 830 Windy Hill Drive Chattanooga, TN 37421, addressed the 

Commission about Orchard Knob Middle students helping with the East Chattanooga 

mural “Painted Gardens”, a Mark Making project. Mrs. Horne stressed the importance of 

art education and asked the Commission to see the value it provides.  She encouraged 

the Commission to attend their respective district’s School Board meetings. She 

provided a copy of the schedule to each Commissioner. In closing she asked that the 

recent tax proposal conversations be referred to as the “Tax to improve education and 

the betterment of our youth” not the “Rick Smith Tax”. 

 

Commissioner Graham responded to Mrs. Horne’s comments and thanked her 

for attending today’s meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

14 

 

Commissioner Mackey thanked Mrs. Horne for her presentation. He asked her 

what position School Board members had on the tax increase issue.   

 

In response to Commission Mackey’s question, Mrs. Horne stated that she 

believed school board members would eventually publicly state where they stand on the 

proposal. 

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that Hamilton County has once again received a 

triple AAA bond rating from Fitch Ratings.  He indicated that the County is waiting for 

results from the other two rating agencies. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks congratulated Al Kiser and his finance team for their 

hard work.  

 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 1, 2015 
 

15 

 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, April 8, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 

 































No. 415-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, CONTINUATION CERTIFICATES FOR 
THE BONDS OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT,  AND OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS. 

 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
"HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "CONTINUATION 
CERTIFICATES FOR THE BONDS OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATONS DISTRICT" have submitted for filing a 
bond as required in TCA Section 7-86-119; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled "HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" are hereby approved as applicants 
therefore; and 
 
 



 

 

2. That the persons named on the listing labeled "CONTINUATION 
CERTIFICATES FOR THE BONDS OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT" are filed and made a 
matter of record; and  

 
 

3. That the persons named on the listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS" are accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and  
 

 
 4. That each such person named on the listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1

 
Heather Best 723 Cove Rd. Chattanooga First Federal CU 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 3120 Broad St. 
 423-883-1151 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-267-7621 
 
Lyndi K. Blair 4710 Alabama Rd. America's Home Place 
 Apison, TN 37302 2265 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. A 
 423-838-8920 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-510-9104 
 
Lacie K. Boyd 13020 McGill Rd. New Covenant Medical 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 6106 Shallowford Rd, Ste. 108 
 423-664-7930 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-760-8700 
 
Adala Boyd 8913 Birchwood Pike Suntrust Bank 
 Harrison, TN 37341 7001 Lee Highway 
 423-892-2433 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-2433 
 
Kathryn Carey 2447 Bridge Circle, Apt. 300 Drivetime Car Sales 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6000 Shallowford Rd. 
 908-268-9773 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-242-4599 
 
Kamara L. Chitwood 2524 Hickory Valley Rd. Chitwood and Chitwood 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 5746 Marlin Rd, Ste. 500 
 423-255-8456 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-892-4882 
 
Elinor Choate 936 Mountain Creek Rd, Apt. E60 First Presbyterian Church 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 554 McCallie Ave. 
 423-591-5985 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-267-1206 
 
Connie Cofrancesco 707 Gentry Rd. Neuhoff Taylor Architects, PC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 699 Dallas Rd. 
 423-855-0208 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-265-3272 
 
Sandra Cranmore 8244 Oxford Dr. First Tennessee Bank 
 Hixson, TN 37343 137 Harrison Lane 
 423-304-6425 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-451-0414 
 
Karen Crawford 9401 Berkshire Circle Dialysis Clinic, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6104 N. Mack Smith Rd. 
 423-834-3094 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-894-8133 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2

 
Camelli F. Darden 722 Hargraves Ave. Clark & Washington, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 6025 Lee Highway 
 423-298-1965 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-893-8340 
 
Claudia D. Davis 4846 Hillsdale Cir. N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 N/A 
 423-895-8785 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Vickie Dube 1220 Cranbrook Dr. Pediatric Diagnostic Assoc. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 725 Glenwood Dr, Ste E 882 
 423-598-9420 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-698-2229 
 
Kilea Erwin 103 Evening Side Dr. Metro Tabernacle 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 2101 W. Shepherd Rd. 
 423-326-9451 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-3377 
 
Staysha Forester 402 Park Lake Rd. Tennessee Title Loans, Inc. 
 Rossville, GA 30741 5519 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-619-5931 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-954-9225 
 
Kathryn E. Gladden 22 North Larchmont Ave. Tweety Childcare Group Home 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 Same 
 423-697-1964 Same 
  Same 
 
John W. Graham 6112 Hixson Pike Phipps Cleaning Service 
 Hixson, TN 37343 Same 
 423-842-5190 Same 
  423-902-6124 
 
Candice Grant 9032 Waconda Shore Dr. Presley Law Firm 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 1384 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. B 
 423-326-3606 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-826-1800 
 
Jennifer Hakeem 11403 Dolly Pond Rd. City of Chattanooga LDO 
 Birchwood, TN 37308 1250 Market St, Ste. 1000 
 423-314-8032 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-5800 
 
Terra E. Harris 9807 Autumn Glen Dr. East Ridge Transmission, Inc. 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1409 Altamaha St. 
 423-596-9710 East Ridge, TN 37412 
  423-899-7790 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3

 
Jamie Harrison 7214 Robin Roost Trail Angela C. Larkins, Attorney 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 701 Cherokee Blvd, Ste. 155 
 615-788-0666 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-648-6622 
 
Pamela E. Harvey 7221 Cane Hollow Road Jones Raulston Title Agency 
 Hixson, TN 37343 518 Georgia Ave, Ste. 200 
 423-842-4300 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-362-4333 
 
Jim Hayes 1260 Village Green Dr. Self Employed 
 Hixson, TN 37343 6401 Hixson Pike, Ste. A 
 423-842-7450 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-842-2400 
 
Scherri Hickman 167 Willow Creek Dr. N/A 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 N/A 
 423-580-0896 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Shea Higgins 1407 John Ross Rd. Drivetime 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6000 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-718-9099 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-242-4599 
 
Alicia M. Howard 300 Marion Dr. Physician Practice Resources 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 101 
 423-227-5568 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-648-9808 
 
Veronica D. Hurd 3623 Premium Dr. TN Dept of Corrections 
 Hixson, TN 37415 540 McCallie Ave, Ste. 250 
 423-877-7039 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-6333 
 
Mitzi Johnston 1010 Rivermont Place Martin Pierce, Attorney at Law 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 4513 Hixson Pike, Ste. 109 
 423-385-6273 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-648-4303 
 
Gloria W. Jones 2125 Standard Dr. Realty Title & Escrow Services 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 5870 Highway 153, Ste. 102 
 423-280-3151 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-1970 
 
Rowena R. Keane 1414 Continental Dr, Apt. 1003 McCallie School 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 500 Dodds Ave. 
 423-400-9543 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-493-5886 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4

 
Grace Manley 3131 Mountain Creek Rd, Apt. 9B8 Springleaf Financial 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1925 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 109 
 865-851-6331 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-6720 
 
Jeff McAfee 225 N. Howell Ave. Fleissner, Davis, & Johson 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 P.O. Box 869 
 423-771-6537 Chattanooga, TN 37401 
  423-756-3591 
 
Secondra Dees Meadows 2429 East Third St. N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 N/A 
 423-432-5922 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Colby Miller 118 Vandergriff Rd. Springleaf Financial 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 1925 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 109 
 423-463-9594 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-6720 
 
Kizmet Milton 1664 Greendale Way N/A 
 Hixson, TN 37343 N/A 
 423-385-8399 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Xiomara Morales 3021 Freedom Ln. Extreme Auto Sales, Inc. 
 Dalton, GA 30721 3718 Rossville Blvd. 
 706-913-0599 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-490-7777 
 
Brenda L. Owens 221 Highland Dr. Citizens Savings & Loan 
 Rossville, GA 30741 3736 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-309-0068 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-698-4407. 
 
Amy J. Ownby 532 Millbrook Cir. The Bridge at Ooltewah 
 Cleveland, TN 37323 5901 Snow Hill Rd. 
 423-331-4770 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-760-8540 
 
Alma J. Patton 6103 St. Andrews Way JC Curtis Construction Co, LLC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1507 Wilder St. 
 423-842-9655 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-894-5480 
 
Bertram Couch Payne II 315 White Eagle Trl H & M Painting Company 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1413 Chesnut St. 
 706-952-4220 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-227-8079 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5

 
Becki Pineda 114 N. Forrest Ave. Church of the Good Shepherd 
 Lookout Mtn, TN 37350 211 Franklin Rd. 
 423-475-9474 Lookout Mtn, TN 37350 
  423-821-1583 
 
W. Scott Ray 8808 Havendale Lane Harry B. Ray & Associates, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6148 Lee Hwy, Ste. 210 
 423-531-8327 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-693-0160 
 
Cat Robinson 2288 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 154, #109 Evironmental Solutions Group 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2030 Hamilton Plc Blvd, Ste. 200 
 404-786-9417 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-954-3680 
 
Esai Rodriguez 712 E. Morris St. Morales Group Services, Inc. 
 Dalton, GA 30721 4201 Rossville Blvd. 
 706-218-3683 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-486-9999 
 
Alicia C. Rogers 4 Talley Circle Physician Practice Resources 
 Ft. Ogelthorpe, GA 30742 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 101 
 423-486-0686 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-648-9808 
 
Michael D. Ronan 2918 Nurick Dr. Weems and Ronan 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 744 McCallie Ave, Ste. 520 
 423-356-4332 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-624-1000 
 
Donna Satterfield 1622 Miriam Lane Community Trust & Banking 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 9125 Lee Highway 
 423-704-0463 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-1111 
 
Oswaldo Saucedo 981 Cavender Rd, SE Morales Group Services, Inc. 
 Dalton, GA 30721 4201 Rossville Blvd. 
 706-508-2872 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-486-9999 
 
Shaneika Shepherd 616 N. Highland Park Ave. State of Tennessee 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 5600 Brainerd Rd, Ste. 602A 
 423-629-4047 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-634-6550 
 
Joseph C. Simpson 694 County Road 218 Husch Blackwell, LLP 
 Niota, TN 37826 736 Georgia Ave, Ste. 300 
 423-829-0064 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-5939 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6

 
Marchetta L. H. Smith 12602 Hwy 58 N/A 
 Georgetown, TN 37336 N/A 
 423-435-6787 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Terri Stansell 6104 Sasha Lane Chattanooga First Federal CU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 3120 Broad St. 
 423-344-3279 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-267-7621 
 
Amanda S. Thomas 4200 Alabama Ave. University of Surgical Assoc, LLC. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37409 979 E. 3rd St, Ste. 300 
 423-298-4543 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-267-0466 
 
Aaron Clifton Turnmire 2133 Vaden Village Dr. Tennessee Valley FCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 1101 Market St. 
 423-619-6260 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5300 
 
JD Wallace 4311 Wilson Avenue Milligan Reynolds 
 Signal Mountain, TN 37377 724 Cherry St. 
 865-898-2975 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-0911 
 
Sandra White 2627 Maromede Lane First Tennessee Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 701 Market St. 
 423-710-5092 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-757-4445 
 
Yieng Yann 114 Passons Rd. First Volunteer Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 5109 Hixson Pike 
 423-875-0451 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-668-4645 
 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATES FOR THE BONDS OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT 

APRIL 15, 2015 

The individuals listed below have submitted to the County Clerk a bond as required by law. 

Original Date of 
Amount of Bond Continuation 

Certificate 
John S. Stuermer $283,757.00 August 27, 2014 

Edward M. Phillips $294,206.00 January 11, 2015 

Donna Allen, Sr. $298, 785 .00 February 15, 2015 

Richard L. Brown $298, 785.00 February 15, 2015 

Jeffrie J. Donnick $298,785.00 February 15, 2015 

Daisy W. Madison $298,785.00 February 15, 2015 

MB __ _ 
PAGE ---



HAMILTON COUNTY EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT 
3404 Amnicola Hwy • Chattanooga, TN 37406 • (423) 622-1911 • www.hc911.org 

DON ALLEN 
Chairman, Board of Directors 

JOHN STUERMER 
Executive Director 

MIKE MAHN March 27 2015 
Legal Counsel ' 

Mr. Bill Knowles 
Hamilton County Clerk 
625 Georgia Avenue, Room 201 
Chattanooga,TN 37402 

Dear Mr. Knowles: 

Enclosed you will find six Continuation Certificates for surety bonds on file in your office. The 
certificates are for John Stuermer, Richard Brown, Daisy Madison, Edward Phillips, Don Allen and myself 
and are forwarded for safekeeping in your office per TCA 5-6-109. 

Should you have any questions or need further information, please do not hesitate to contact me at this 
office. 

Sincerely, 

Encl. 

- VI f (Bill Knowles 
ttamilton County Ctet1t 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203-1227 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATE 
Bond No. POB867579405 

John S. Stuermer 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No,_ __ 

POB867579405 dated the, _2_7_th _____________ day of August 2007 

in the penalty of Two hundred eighty three thousand seven hundred fifty seven 

in favor of The State of Tennessee Comptroller Office 

Dollars ($_2_83--'-,7_5_7 _____ ), 

----------------------- , do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _2_7_th__________ day of _A_u_;;;;g_u_st ______ _ 2014 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

Signed, sealed and dated this _3_0_th __________ day of September, 2014 

Principal 

Principal 

Principal 

FIDELIJY ANDDEPOSITC0~=-13-~· 

By. -------------------
Rhonda Talley 

LPM90001 ZZ l lOOf 

(SEAL) 

(SEAL) 

(SEAL) 



.. 
\, 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof an~ are hereby certified to be in, full force and effect on the date hereof, do, hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN; Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLA.ND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY _COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by written _instrument under the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations,· undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15tl1.<lay of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attomey ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 

as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this __ day of 20 __ . 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: 600 Red Brook Boulevard, Suite 600, Owings Mills, MD 21117 

Mailing Address: 1400 American Lane, T2-3, Schaumburg, IL 60196 

d 
POB867579413 

Bon No.-------

RIDER 

Public Official Bond 
To be attached to and form a part of ________________ Bond, No. POB8675794 13 

dated the 27th day of_A_u_g_u_st _____ 2_01_4_ issued by Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 

as Surety, on behalfof John S. Stuermer as Principal, 

in the penal sum of Two hundred eighty three thousand seven hundred fifty seven 

Dollars ), and in favor of State of Tennessee - Comptroller of the Treasury 

In consideration of the premium charged for the attached bond, it is hereby agreed that the attached bond be amended as 
follows: 

Bond limit increased from two hundred eighty three thousand seven hundred fifty seven dollars ($283,757) to two 

hundred ninety four thousand two hundred six dollars ($294,206) 

Provided, However, that the attached bond shall be subject to all its agreements, limitations and conditions except as 
herein expressly modified, and further that the liability of the Surety under the attached bond and the attached bond as 
amended by this rider shall not be cumulative. 

27th 
This rider shall become effective as ofth-e------- day of August 

2014 

Signed, sealed and dated this _1_6_th _________ day of October, 2014 

J By 

PRINCIPAL l 

~TED: /) 

~ fS-bo~ 

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 

~ ~YRhondaT~ 
GEN90004ZZ100lf 

, Attorney-in-Fact 



ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed· the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, A.O. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by Written instrument under the· attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations, undertakings, or other like instrum.ents on behalf of the Company; and may authorize any officer or any· such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify ofrevoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attomey ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company. 11 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 
as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this __ day of 20 __ . 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203-1227 

CONTINUATlON.CERTIFICATE 
' ' • ,., - ' ·, • I.• • • •• ~ ~ ; f ' • ·, •' ' • • • , • ~ • • •.' • • '; 

Edward M Phillips, Hamilton County 911 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No, __ _ 

POB874784403 dated the, _l_l_th _____________ day of January _2_0_13 __ _ 

in the penalty of Two hundred ninety four thousand two hundred six Dollars ($ 294-206 ), 

in favor of Tennessee Secretary of State, Board of Directors 

----------------------,do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _l_l_th ____ "'------- day of January 2015 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

LPM90001ZZI IOOf 

------------ day of January, 2015 

-~---=· =--=·'-----=-\ffi.._. _· _,. -~--p-----ip-al_(SEAL) 
_____________ (SEAL) 

Principal 

--------------(SEAL) 
Principal 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT C~AND . 

By. ~onda Talley-~ 



ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice Presiden~ in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies,. which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS O. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Coiporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Coiporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Cotporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

",Article V,Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. Ttie Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by Written instrument ·under' the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in~fact with authority to execute' bonds, policies, 
recognizances,· stipufatioris, uridertakings, dr other like iµstruments · on -behalf of the Company,.-and inay authorize· any officer or :any such 
attorney-in;. fact l(} affix the corporate ~eal thereto; and'inay with or _without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY, the . COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly Cfllled and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attorney ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on•the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

- RESOLVED:. "'That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal .of the company. and facsimile· or mechanically reproduced signature 
of ariy Vice-President;:Secretary, or Assistant Secretary bf the Company, whether tnade heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attomey issued by the Cotripany, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 
as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have heg-u.1to subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this ildayof JCt.Av~ ,20t . 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: 600 Red Brook Boulevard, Suite 600, Owings Mills, MD 21117 

Mailing Address: 1400 American Lane, T2-3, Schaumburg, IL 60196 

d 
POB874784403 

Bon No.-------

RIDER 

Public Official Bond 
To be attached to and form a part of _______________ _ 

Bond, No.POB874784403 

dated the 11th day of January 2013 Fffiru~&d Deposit Company of Maryland 

as Surety, on behalf of Edward M Phillips Hamilton County 911 ____ _ 
, as Principal, 

in the penal sum of Two hundred ninety four thousand two hundred six 

Dollars ), and in favor of Tennessee Secretary of State, Board of Directors 

In consideration of the premium charged for the attached bond, it is hereby agreed that the attached bond be amended as 
follows: 

Change the penal sum of the bond from Two hundred ninety four thousand two hundred six dollars (294,206) to Two 

hundred ninety eight thousand seven hundred eighty six dollars (298,785) 

Provided, However, that the attached bond shall be subject to all its agreements, limitations and conditions except as 
herein expressly modified, and further that the liability of the Surety under the attached bond and the attached bond as 
amended by this rider shall not be cumulative. 

. . . 11th d f This nder shall become effective as ofth-e~------ ay o Tamiary ,2015 

Signed, sealed and dated this _2_8_th _________ day of January ,2015 

Edward M Phillips, Hamilton County 911 

ATIEST: 'O 
~~ PRINCIPAL 

JBy<;'~~'~ l Edward M Phillips 

ACCEPTED: 

GEN90004ZZ100lf 
, Attorney-in-Fact 



ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the 11Companies11

), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 

MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Coxporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Coxporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The ChiefExecutive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by written instrument under the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attomey ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 
as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMO~Y WHEREOF, I have h€?f~lto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this ~day of ..\lc..nViv, , 20_lb_. 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



., 
' 

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203-1227 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATE 
Bond No. POB4002767 23 

Donald Allen, Sr. ofHamilton County 911 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No,_ __ 

POB4002767 23 dated the, _I_5_th _____________ day of February 2006 

in the penalty of Two hundred ninety eight thousand seven hundred eighty five Dollars ($_2_98_,_78_5 _____ ), 

in favor of The State of Tennessee 

---------------------- , do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _I_5_th__________ day of _F_e_bru_ary ______ _ 2015 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

Signed, sealed and dated this _2_5_th __________ day of February 2015 

(SEAL) 

_____________ (SEAL) 

Principal 

--------------(SEAL) 
Principal 

LPM9000IZZ11 OOf 



ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



, 

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by written instrument under the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify ofrevoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attorney ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 

as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this .2.S day of ~ , 20 I b. · 
~- -~ 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203·1227 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATE 
Bond No. POB8747828 

Richard L Brown of Hamilton County 911 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No,, __ _ 

_P_O_B_8_74_7_8_28 __ dated the, _1_5_th _____________ day of February 2006 

in the penalty of Two hwidred ninety eight thousand seven hundred eighty five Doliars ($_2_9_8,_7_85 ______ ), 

in favor of The State of Tennessee 

---------------------- , do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _1_5_th _________ _ day of February 2015 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

Signed,sealedanddatedthis_
2

_Sth ________ ~a of February[• n~( -.J "'!:>(//Jr-
WitnVr>il/!UI ~ / 0. / /~ . v ~ o -,- ~ ~ 

______________ (SEAL) 

Principal 

-------------(SEAL) 
Principal 

LPM90001ZZI IOOf 



ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYL~D, this 23rd day of April, A.D. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article v·, Sectioi:18~ Attorneys-in-Fact. The ChiefExecut_iye Officer, the Presi4ent, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by' written: in~ttUirierit .·under the attested 'col."Porate, . seaj, ' ~ppoint .attorneys-,in:-fact \\'.ith. auth{)rity' to 'execute bonds, policies, 
·recognizances, stipufations; undertakfogs~"OT: other like iristrumehts on behalfo~ _the CotnpRl)y~ and ~ay authorize any officer or .any such 
attorney'." in-fact to affix· the; corporate 'seal th'erefo; 'and 'may with. df. With.6ut. cause Iriridify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attorney ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

' ' 

. , . RESOLVED: "That thcffacsimile ·or mechanically teproduced seal ~~ thec~mpanyand facsimile or mechanicatiy reproduced signature 
of ariy Vice-President; ·Secretary, or Assistant ·secretary oft~~ C.ompany, whether m~de heretofore or h~eafter, ·wherever. appearing upon a 
certified. copy: ofany po-Wer of attorney issuaf by the CotPpariy, sball ·b~ valid and binding upon the Comp~y with the same force and effect 
as though ~antially affixed. ' ' , ' ' ' . ' ' ' ' 

~ TESTIMOl:-JY WHEREOF, I have her,9VltO subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this ~day of "k-b 20 It.; . 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203· 1227 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATE 
Bond No. POB4003045 18 

Jeffrie J. Donnick of Hamilton County 911 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No.---

POB4003045 18 dated the, _1_5_th _____________ day of February 2006 

in the penalty of Two hundred ninety eight thousand seven hundred eighty five Dollars ($_2_9.....;.8,_78_5 _____ ), 

in favor of The State of Tennessee 

---------------------- , do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _1_5_th _________ _ day of February 2015 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

Signed, sealed and dated this _2_5_th __________ day of February _2_0_15 __ _ 

Wit~fi.~ 

LPM9000IZZ11 OOf 

~ tlJ ~ ~ q Principal (SEAL) 

_____________ (SEAL) 

Principal 

-------------(SEAL) 
Principal 



.. . .. 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April PARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. 

IN WI1NESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland 
City of Baltimore 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 
MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. · 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year first above written. 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 

(\\lll"t1;,,. 

,~"~t!:~U~:.(:i:?'..".-. 
~~ .. Kt .,.,,_~,,._ 
~ / t ) "'-t.·,>:~~ 
ft:i ~ c...: !"f 
.. ~·'"('. --... I •' 
~~··, 'l:1 I{• /~ $'' 

...... %-("······~:',~ 
.. ,,,if:<:W'\'''' 



... 

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by written instrument under the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the cori>orate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attomey ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 
as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMOfu WHEREOF, I have h~nto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this ~day of , 20 !.2_. 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 



<• 

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203-1227 

CONTINUATION CERTIFICATE 
Bond No. POB4002769 22 

Daisy W. Madison ofHamilton County 911 

as Principal, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, as Surety, in a certain Bond No.---

POB4002769 22 dated the, _1_5_th ______________ day of February 2006 

in the penalty of Two hundred ninety eight thousand seven hundred eighty five 

in favor of The State of Tennessee 

Dollars ($_2_98_,_78_5 _____ ), 

---------------------- , do hereby continue said bond in force for the further 

term of one year beginning on the _I_5_th__________ day of _F_e_bru_ary~------ 2015 

Provided, however, that said bond, as continued hereby, shall be subject to all its terms and conditions, except as herein 

modified, and that the liability of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND under said bond 

and any and all continuations thereof shall in no event exceed in the aggregate the above named penalty, and that this 

certificate shall not be valid unless signed by said Principal. 

Signed, sealed and dated this _2_5_th __________ day of February ,_2_0_15 __ _ 

~~(SEAL) 
~ - Principal 

_____________ (SEAL) 

Principal 

-------------~(SEAL) 
Principal 

~ .~ ~) F~fo AND D~POSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

llJJ;. IULAL---- By. R-w~ ~ 
LPM90001ZZ1 lOOf 



• 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New 
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURET'(° COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Maryland, and the FIDELITY 
AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND a corporation o the State of Maryland (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by 
THOMAS 0. MCCLELLAN, Vice President, in pursuance f authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said 
Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are ereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby 
nominate, constitute, and appoint Rhonda TALLEY, April ARRIGIN, Kelley BENNETT, John F. KILLEBREW and Gary 
SANDERS, all of Chattanooga, Tennessee, EACH its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, 
and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bo ds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in 
pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Complans, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of e ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at its office in New 
York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the COLON! AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMP ANY at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., and the regularly elected officers of the IDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at its office in 
Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons. I 

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract sJt forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. · 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP~ OF MARYLAND, this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014. 

Assistant Secretary 
Gregory E. Murray 

State of Maryland i 

City of Baltimore I 

ATTEST: 

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY 
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUAL TY AND SURETY COMPANY 

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND 

Vice President 
Thomas 0. McClellan 

On this 23rd day of April, AD. 2014, before the subscriber, a No~ Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, THOMAS 0. 

MCCLELLAN, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assis~nt Secretary, of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and 
officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and ac owledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, 
that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals ffixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and 
that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly a xed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said 
Corporations. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and a:ffixL my Official Seal the day and year first above written. 
I 

Maria D. Adamski, Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: July 8, 2015 

POA-F 164-6044 



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES 

"Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Fact. The Chief'Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President 
may, by written instrument under the attested corporate seal, appoint attorneys-in-fact with authority to execute bonds, policies, 
recognizances, stipulations, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such 
attorney-in-fact to affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any 
time." 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN 
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that Article V, Section 8, of 
the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force. 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMP ANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 15th day of December 1998. 

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secretary 
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attorney ... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such 
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company." 

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of 
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMP ANY OF MARYLAND at a 
meeting duly called and held on the 10th day of May, 1990. 

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature 
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or hereafter, wherever appearing upon a 
certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect 
as though manually affixed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies, 
this~dayof ~b ,2015. 

Geoffrey Delisio, Vice President 

• 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS 
APRIL 15, 2015 

The individuals listed below have been duly appointed Deputy Sheriffs for Hamilton 
County, Tennessee by Sheriff James W. Hammond, III. The persons were qualified as 
prescribed by law and were administered the oath of office on the date indicated below: 

NAME 
Kendall R. Coulter 

James Frederick Tizzio, Sr. 
Scott Stephen Ogrodowczyk 

DATE OF OATH 
April 1, 2015 
April 1,2015 
April 1,2015 

MB -----
PAGE ___ _ 



STATE OF TENNESSEE } ss 
Hamilton County · 

I, . . ~«:~4~1.1.~ .. ~~µ.!t~r . ................................. , do solemnly swear that! 

will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 

Tennessee, and that I will faithfully execute the duties of the office of Deputy Sheriff of 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, to which office I have been appointed by James W. 

Hammond, III, Sheriff of Said County of Hamilton and State of Tennessee, and which duties 

I am about to assume, to the best of my skill and ability, according to law. 

I further swear that I have not pro~ed or given, nor will I give, any fee, gift, gratuity or 

reward for the office, or for aid in procuring said office, and that I will not take any fee, gift, 

bribe or gratuity for returning any man as juror, or for making any false return of any process; 

and I further swear that I have nor directly or indirectly given, accepted, or knowingly carried 

a challenge, either in writing or otherwise, to any person being a citizen of this State, either in 

or out of the State, nor will I, during my contipuance in office, be guilty of either of these acts, 
! 

so help me God. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

J s-r A 
dayof 4&'/ '2015. 

. ... ~./.aA; ... 
By ... lf!d ... ~.~---······ Kendall R. Coulter 



STATE OF TENNESSEE } ss 
Hamilton County · 

I, . . J.ap;t'?~ fr~4'?:r:i~~ .1;~~~' .~t:· ........................... , do solemnly swear that I 

will support the Constitution of the Uniteql States and the Constitution of the State of 
I 

Tennessee, and that I will faithfully execute the duties of the office of Deputy Sheriff of 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, to which office I have been appointed by James W. 

Hammond, m, Sheriff of Said County of Hamilton and State of Tennessee, and which duties 

I am about to assume, to the best of my skill and ability, according to law. 

I further swear that I have not promised or given, nor will I give, any fee, gift, gratuity or 

reward for the office, 9r for aid in procuring said office, and that I will not take any fee, gift, 

bribe or gratuity for returning any man as juror, or for making any false return of any process; 

and I further swear that I have nor directly or indirectly given, accepted, or knowingly carried 

a challenge, either in writing or otherwise, to any person being a citizen of this State, either in 

or out of the State, nor will I, during my contiµuance in office, be guilty of either of these acts, 

so help me God. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

I ,J day of '-14-'J- , 2015. 

. ........... 9~~.sie 
By .. c/~---~~·-·········· 

James Frederick Tizzio, Sr. 



STATE OF TENNESSEE } 
Hamilton County ss. 

I, .. ~c!>~~ ~t<:P.~<:11 Pgi:o.<l;o)Y~~~ .......................... , do solemnly swear that I 

will support the Constitution of the Unite<d States and the Constitution of the State of 

Tennessee, and that I will faithfully execut4 the duties of the office of Deputy Sheriff of 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, to which office I have been appointed by James W. 

Hammond, III, Sheriff of Said County of Hamilton and State of Tennessee, and which duties 

I am about to assume, to the best of my skill and ability, according to law. 

I further swear that I have not promised or given, nor will I give, any fee, gift, gratuity or 

reward for the o(fice, or for aid in procuring said office, and that I will not take any fee, gift, 

bribe or gratuity for returning any man as juror, or for making any false return of any process; 

and I further swear that I have nor directly or indirectly given, accepted, or knowingly carried 

a challenge, either in writing or otherwise, to any person being a citizen of this State, either in 
I 

! 

or out of the State, nor will I, during my conti1 uance in office, be guilty of either of these acts, 

so help me God. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

-5-J- " ) 
I day of J!!f"; , 2015. 

By.'/J .. ~~---········· 
Scott Stephen O~rodowczyk 



No. 415-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  AA  RREESSOOLLUUTTIIOONN  TTOO  AAPPPPOOIINNTT  AA  RREEGGUULLAARR  MMEEMMBBEERR  TTOO  TTHHEE  HHAAMMIILLTTOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
BBOOAARRDD  OOFF  ZZOONNIINNGG  AAPPPPEEAALLSS,,  AANNDD  TTOO  AAPPPPOOIINNTT  ((22))  TTWWOO  AASSSSOOCCIIAATTEE  MMEEMMBBEERRSS  
TTHHEERREEOOFF..  
 

WWHHEERREEAASS,,  TTeennnneesssseeee  CCooddee  AAnnnnoottaatteedd  1133--440066  aanndd  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
ZZoonniinngg  RReegguullaattiioonnss  VVIIII,,  SSeeccttiioonn  110066  eett  sseeqq..,,  pprroovviiddee  ffoorr  tthhee  
aappppooiinnttmmeenntt  ooff  mmeemmbbeerrss  ttoo  tthhee  HHaammiillttoonn  BBooaarrdd  ooff  ZZoonniinngg  
AAppppeeaallss  bbyy  tthhee  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss;;  aanndd  

  
WWHHEERREEAASS,,  tthhee  LLooccaall  ZZoonniinngg  OOrrddiinnaannccee  ooff  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  hhaass  bbeeeenn  

aammeennddeedd  ttoo  rreefflleecctt  tthhee  ffaacctt  tthhaatt  aassssoocciiaattee  mmeemmbbeerrss  ccaann  bbee  
aappppooiinntteedd  ttoo  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  ZZoonniinngg  AAppppeeaallss  ttoo  sseerrvvee  iinn  tthhee  eevveenntt  
aannyy  rreegguullaarr  mmeemmbbeerr  iiss  tteemmppoorraarriillyy  uunnaavvaaiillaabbllee  ttoo  aacctt  oowwiinngg  ttoo  
aabbsseennccee  ffrroomm  tthhee  CCoouunnttyy  oorr  iillllnneessss;;  aanndd  

  
WWHHEERREEAASS,,  tthhee  tteerrmm  ooff  JJiimm  PPaarrkkss  oonn  ssaaiidd  BBooaarrdd  eexxppiirreedd  oonn  OOccttoobbeerr  11,,  

22001133,,  aanndd    JJoosseepphh  ((JJooee))  GG..  DDeeGGaaeettaannoo  hhaass  bbeeeenn  pprreesseenntteedd  ffoorr  
aappppooiinnttmmeenntt  ffoorr  aa  tteerrmm  eexxppiirriinngg  JJaannuuaarryy  1199,,  22001188;;  aanndd    

  
WWHHEERREEAASS,,  ffrroomm  ttiimmee  ttoo  ttiimmee  tthheerree  eexxiissttss  vvaaccaanncciieess  oonn  ssaaiidd  BBooaarrdd  dduuee  ttoo  

aappppooiinntteeeess’’  aabbsseennccee  oorr  ssiicckknneessss,,  tthheerreebbyy  rreeqquuiirriinngg  tthhee  
ddeessiiggnnaattiioonn  ooff  aann  aalltteerrnnaattee  aanndd  aann  aassssoocciiaattee  mmeemmbbeerr;;  aanndd  

  
WWHHEERREEAASS,,  tthhee  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  wwiisshheess  ttoo  

aappppooiinntt  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerr  MMaarrttyy  HHaayynneess  aass  aann  
aalltteerrnnaattee,,  aanndd  MMeelliinnddaa  VVoollkkeerr  aass  aann  aassssoocciiaattee  oonn  ssaaiidd  BBooaarrdd..
      

  
NNOOWW,,  TTHHEERREEFFOORREE,,  BBEE  IITT  RREESSOOLLVVEEDD  BBYY  TTHHIISS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  LLEEGGIISSLLAATTIIVVEE  BBOODDYY  IINN  SSEESSSSIIOONN  
AASSSSEEMMBBLLEEDD::  
  

TThhaatt  JJoosseepphh  GG..  DDeeGGaaeettaannoo  iiss  hheerreebbyy  aappppooiinntteedd  aass  aa  mmeemmbbeerr  ttoo  tthhee  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  ZZoonniinngg  AAppppeeaallss,,  ffoorr  aa  tteerrmm  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  aanndd  eennddiinngg  JJaannuuaarryy  1199..  



 

 

22001188;;  tthhaatt  HHaammiillttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerr  MMaarrttyy  HHaayynneess  aanndd  MMeelliinnddaa  VVoollkkeerr  aarree  
hheerreebbyy  aappppooiinntteedd  aass  aalltteerrnnaattee  aanndd  aassssoocciiaattee  mmeemmbbeerrss,,  rreessppeeccttiivveellyy,,  ttoo  ssaaiidd  BBooaarrdd..      

  
BBEE  IITT  FFUURRTTHHEERR  RREESSOOLLVVEEDD  TTHHAATT  TTHHIISS  RREESSOOLLUUTTIIOONN  TTAAKKEE  EEFFFFEECCTT  FFRROOMM  AANNDD  AAFFTTEERR  
IITTSS  PPAASSSSAAGGEE,,  TTHHEE  PPUUBBLLIICC  WWEELLFFAARREE  RREEQQUUIIRRIINNGG  IITT..  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



JOSEPH G. DEGAETANO 
Home: 820 Westwood Avenue, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37405 
Office: 50 Frazier Avenue, Suite 300, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37405 
Phone: (423) 255-7642 (mobile) 
Email: joe@jdfirm.com  
 

EDUCATION 
University of Georgia School of Law, Athens, GA 

• Juris Doctor, 2000, Summa Cum Laude 
• GPA:  3.91/4.0, Class Rank:  2nd in class of 223 
• School of Law Scholarship recipient 
• Teaching Assistant to Professor John B. Rees, Civil Procedure, 1998-2000 
• GEORGIA LAW REVIEW, Editorial Board  
• Awards for highest grades (A+) in Criminal Law, Torts, and Civil Procedure 

 
Vanderbilt University, Nashville, TN 

• Bachelor of Science, Economics, 1996, Magna Cum Laude 
• GPA:  3.68/4.0 
• Top Tenn Scholarship recipient 
• President, Alpha Tau Omega Fraternity 

 
JUDICIAL CLERKSHIP 

United States Court of Appeals, Eleventh Circuit, Atlanta, GA, August 2000 to August 2001 term. 
Law clerk to the Honorable Phyllis A. Kravitch, Senior Circuit Judge 

• Extensive legal research and writing in numerous areas of federal civil and criminal law.  
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 I have engaged in the private practice of law in Tennessee continuously since 2001, and I have 
owned my own law firm since 2009.  My primary area of practice is civil litigation, and I also represent 
indigent criminal defendants in federal court.  My experience includes a significant amount of zoning 
litigation in Davidson County.  In addition to my law practice, I own and manage an office and retail 
property in North Chattanooga that is home to a number of small businesses. 
 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
• Legal Aid of East Tennessee – Volunteer representation of indigent clients, 2005-present. 
• Chattanooga Bar Association – Volunteer Arbitrator of fee disputes, 2011-present. 
• Chattanooga Kids on the Block – Board of Directors, 2009-2011. 
• Normal Park Museum Magnet School – Regular volunteer, 2011-present. 
• Cottages at Knickerbocker Homeowners Association – Board of Directors, 2009-present. 
• North River Soccer Association – Youth Coach, 2012-present. 

 
BAR ADMISSIONS 

• Licensed to practice law in Tennessee (since 2001) and Georgia (since 2000). 
• Admitted to U.S. Court of Appeals (6th Circuit) and U.S. District Court (E.D. Tenn. and M.D. Tenn.). 

 
STATE BAR LEADERSHIP 

• Chair, Executive Council, Tennessee Bar Association Tort & Insurance Practice Section, 2011-2012. 
 

PERSONAL 
• Wife:  Heather DeGaetano.  Daughter:  Lucie DeGaetano (age 8) 
• Continuous resident of Chattanooga since March 2005 
• Continuous resident of Hamilton County (Hixson):  1979-1992 

mailto:joe@jdfirm.com�


No. 415-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF 
THOMAS LAMB AS DIRECTOR OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT. 
 
WHEREAS,   Ron Priddy is retiring as Director of Parks and Recreation effective May 1, 
2015 and created a vacancy in the Hamilton County Parks and Recreation Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS,   the County Mayor has appointed Thomas Lamb as Director of Parks and 
Recreation, effective May 13, 2015, at Salary Range 77, with an annual salary of $80,011.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the appointment of Thomas Lamb as Director of the Parks and Recreation Department is 
hereby confirmed for a salary stated above and becoming effective May 13, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 415-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A TERM ENDING APRIL 18, 2019.  
 
 
WHEREAS,    by Resolution No. 614-15 this county legislative body adopted an amendment 

to Chapter 297 of the Private Acts of 1976, and Chapter 71 of the Private Acts 
of 2012, and any other acts amendatory thereto, relative to the Hospital 
Authority created to operate Baroness Erlanger Hospital, T.C. Thompson 
Children’s Hospital and other facilities, as passed by the 108th General 
Assembly of the State of Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS,    certain members of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority 

Board of Trustees are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the 
Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS,   the County Mayor has reappointed Jack Studer, to a term beginning April 18, 

2015 and ending April 18, 2019. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Jack Studer to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital 
Authority Board of Trustees is hereby confirmed for the term stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 415-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ON DUTY DEPOT FOR ONE (1) YEAR 
CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 15, 2015 THROUGH APRIL 14, 2016, 
FOR VEHICLE UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE SHERIFF’S VEHICLES AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

unit pricing for upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the bid from On Duty Depot was considered to be the lowest and best bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of On Duty Depot for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning April 15, 2015 
through April 14, 2016, for vehicle upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles is hereby 
accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contacts necessary to implement this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 





























No. 415-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DIVERSIFIED COMPANIES, LLC FOR A 
THREE (3) YEAR CONTRACT FOR PRINTING AND PROCESSING DELINQUENT TAX 
SUMMONS, BEGINNING APRIL 15, 2015 THROUGH APRIL 14, 2018, FOR THE 
TRUSTEE’S OFFICE AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a three (3) year 

contract, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year terms, for 
printing and processing of Delinquent Tax Summons for the Trustee’s Office; 
and,  

   
WHEREAS, the bid from Diversified Companies, LLC was the only bid received, but said 

bid is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Diversified Companies for a three (3) year contract for printing and processing 
Delinquent Tax Summons, beginning April 15, 2015 through April 14, 2018, for the Trustee’s 
Office is hereby accepted and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contacts necessary to 
implement this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 









































No. 415-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO APPROPRIATE $250,000 
FROM BOND PROCEEDS TO REIMBURSE THE STADIUM CORPORATION FOR 
REPLACEMENT OF THE STADIUM FIELD SURFACE.  
 
WHEREAS, the playing surface at Finley Stadium is in critical need of replacement, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Stadium Corporation desires to replace the playing surface with a state of the art 

turf system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of replacing the field surface is approximately $600,000, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Stadium Corporation has requested $250,000 each from the City of Chattanooga 

and Hamilton County, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Stadium Corporation has secured other funding for the remaining cost associated 

with replacing the field surface and other much needed capital improvements. 
   

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is authorized to appropriate $250,000 from bond proceeds to reimburse the 
Stadium Corporation for replacement of the stadium field surface. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF TWO HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($200,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF AN ALLEGED 
WRONGFUL DEATH CLAIM AGAINST HAMILTON COUNTY AS BROUGHT BY 
THE PARENTS AND NEXT FRIENDS OF AUSTIN DAKOTA WALLACE.  
 
 

WHEREAS,    litigation has been instituted against Hamilton County, Tennessee,  
   by David T. Wallace and Heather L. Stein, individually, and as  
   parents and next friends of Austin Dakota Wallace, a minor, for the  
   alleged wrongful death of said minor while he was in custody  
   in the Hamilton County Juvenile Detention Center; and  
 
 

WHEREAS,   through mediation entered into between the attorneys for the  
   parties, said plaintiffs have agreed to accept a settlement in the  
   amount of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00) in  
   complete satisfaction of any and all claims that they have, or might  
   have, against Hamilton County, Tennessee; and  
 
 

 WHEREAS,   this county legislative body feels that the payment of said amount  
   would be in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County,  
   and would bring about a fair disposition of this matter. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 

  That the payment of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00) is hereby 
  authorized to be paid to David T. Wallace and Heather L. Stein, individually 
  and as parents and next friends of Austin Dakota Wallace, a minor, for the full 
  and complete settlement of any and all claims against Hamilton County, 
 



 

 

  Tennessee for and related to the alleged wrongful death of Austin Dakota 
  Wallace while in custody in the Hamilton County Juvenile Detention Center. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF $31,111.49 TO FARMERS 
INSURANCE COMPANY FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE  INCURRED BY THEIR 
INSURED AS A RESULT OF AN AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT WITH A HAMILTON 
COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT VEHICLE. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County Government operates various vehicles for road use in the 
delivery of various services throughout the County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Highway Department operated a vehicle on Highway 153 
on December 4, 2014 which collided with claimant’s vehicle that was also travelling on  
Highway 153; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County may be legally responsible for said damage; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County has reached an agreement for settlement of property damage related 
to this claim with claimant’s insurance carrier, totaling $31,111.49 ; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County has funds budgeted through its self insurance program to handle such 
claims. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION NOW ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the payment of $31,111.49 to Farmers 
Insurance Company for full and final settlement of this property damage claim arising from 
accident on Highway 153 in Hixson, Tennessee on December 4, 2014. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE AFFECT AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE HIGHEST AND BEST BID FOR CERTAIN 
PARCELS OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY HAMILTON COUNTY THROUGH 
PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 
AND COUNTY TRUSTEE TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE DEEDS CONVEYING 
SAID PARCELS TO INDIVIDUALS LISTED HEREIN BELOW. 
 
 
WHEREAS,  on January 21, 2015, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners approved 
  Resolution No. 115-35 establishing the minimum bid amount for certain parcels
  of property acquired by Hamilton County through previous delinquent tax sales
  and authorizing the sale of said parcels at that minimum bid amount; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  said bids are equal to or above the established bid amount; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners’ Delinquent Tax Property  
  Special Committee has reviewed the bids received for each parcel of such  
  property and it is the recommendation of said Special Committee that said 
  parcels be sold for the highest and best bid to those individuals making said
  bids; and, 
 
WHEREAS, those individuals making the highest bids have paid to Hamilton County the full 
  amount of said bid and the list showing each parcel and name of each purchaser
  is attached and incorporated herein by reference thereto as though fully and
  completely copied verbatim herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION      
ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the highest bid for certain parcels of property acquired by Hamilton 
County through previous delinquent tax sales be accepted and that the County 
Mayor and County Trustee are hereby authorized to enter into and execute 



 

 

deeds conveying said parcels at the sold price shown to those individuals listed,  
or their assigns, same being attached and incorporated herein by reference 
thereto as though fully and completely copied verbatim herein. 
 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING 
IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 415-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ELECTRONIC CONTROLS, INC. FOR 
HVAC CONTROLS MODIFICATIONS FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY CORRECTIONS 
BUILDING AMOUNTING TO $20,400.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for the HVAC 

controls modifications at the Hamilton County Corrections Building; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Electronic Controls, Inc. amounting to $20,400.00 was only bid 

received, but said bid is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Electronic Controls, Inc. for HVAC controls modifications at the Hamilton 
County Corrections Building amounting to $20,400.00 is hereby accepted and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 415-25 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SOFTWARE SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 
FROM ESRI, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR, BEGINNING JUNE 9, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 8, 2016, 
FOR THE GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT AMOUNTING TO 
$74,344.45 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for a one (1) year support and maintenance contract for 

software used by the Geographic Information Systems Department and other County 
offices; and, 

 
WHEREAS, ESRI, Inc. is considered a sole source for this service; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the quotation from ESRI, Inc. amounting to $74,344.45 was considered reasonable; 

and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from ESRI, Inc. for a one (1) year software support and maintenance contract, 
beginning June 9, 2015, through June 8, 2016, amounting to $74,344.45 for the Geographic 
Information Systems Department is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 





















No. 415-26 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF FEBRUARY 1, 2015, THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between February 1, 2015, through February 28, 

2015.  
 
 February 2, 2015, $13,672.00 for 8,000 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.7090 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 February 3, 2015, $2,684.19 for 1,447 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.8550 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 February 3, 2015, $12,810.19 for 8,609 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.4880 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 February 4, 2015, $5,515.08 for 3,017 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.8280 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 February 9, 2015, $886.05 for 406 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.1824 per gallon from 

Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 February 11, 2015, $1,215.00 for 600 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.0250 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 February 16, 2015, $13,484.56 for 8,579 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.57181 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 February 19, 2015, $12,488.56 for 8,121 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.53781 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  



 

 

 
  February 20, 2015, $14,837.76 for 7,563 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.961888 per gallon 

from Lykins Energy Solutions.  
 
 February 23, 2015, $14,913.05 for 7,569 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.97028 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 February 27, 2015, $15,046.35 for 7,544 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.994479 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 February 27, 2015, $13,434.90 for 8,086 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.661501 per 

gallon from Pilot Travel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 415-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF FLU VACCINE FROM NOVARTIS, 
SANOFI-PASTEUR, McKESSON MED-SURG MN SUPPLY, AT STATEWIDE CONTRACT 
PRICING AND, IF NECESSARY, OTHER FIRMS AT THE LOWEST AND BEST AVAILABLE 
PRICING QUOTE FOR THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,   State contract pricing has been quoted from the only sources, GSK, ASD,  
  Novartis, and Sanofi-Pasteur, CSL/Merck, MedImmune, McKesson Med- 
  Surg MN Supply and FFF Enterprises currently having FDA approved flu  
  vaccine for the upcoming season; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Health Department has determined that vaccine purchases from these firms  
  and others that may offer the vaccine as the influenza season approaches may be  
  required in order to ensure a timely and adequate supply of influenza vaccine for  
  Hamilton County citizenry; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning  
  department. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the purchase of flu vaccine from Novartis,  Sanofi-Pasteur, and McKesson Med-Surg MN Supply, 
and other firms that subsequently offer such vaccine for the Health Department is hereby accepted and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415 -28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CO-APPLICANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CO-APPLICANT 
BOARD OF THE HOMELESS HEALTH CARE CENTER (HHC) AS REQUIRED BY THE HEALTH RESOURCES 
AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (HRSA).  
 
WHEREAS,  since 1988, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department has been the recipient of a HRSA grant 

to operate the HHC, and   
 
WHEREAS,  since that time, as a public entity, we have been granted a waiver from the usual Community Health 

Center governance standards imposed by HRSA, and   
 
WHEREAS,  this waiver allowed us to have an advisory council in lieu of an authoritative board, leaving all 

administrative authority of the HHC with the Health Department, and    
 
WHEREAS,  HRSA has announced that this type of waiver will no longer be granted to any health center, and  
 
WHEREAS,  HRSA recognizes that certain authorities must be maintained by public entities such as the Health 

Department, and  
 
WHEREAS,  HRSA has proposed for public entities, the concept of a Co-Applicant Agreement, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Co-Applicant Agreement delineates the authorities maintained by each and/or shared by the Health 

Department and the Co-Applicant Board of the Homeless Health Care Center, and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Health Department wishes to enter into a Co-Applicant Agreement with the Co-Applicant Board of the 

Homeless Health Care Center. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Co-Applicant Agreement between the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Health Department and the Co-Applicant Board of the Homeless Health Care Center 
(HHC) as required by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA). 
 

BE IT FURTHERE RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTIONS TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 415-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN AN  AMENDMENT CONTRACT  WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  IN THE AMOUNT OF $147,292.00 TO PROVIDE HEALTH CARE SAFETY 
NET PRIMARY CARE SERVICES TO UNINSURED ADULTS IN HAMILTON COUNTY AT THE 
HOMELESS HEALTH CARE CENTER FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015.   
 
 
WHEREAS,  primary care services are needed to treat uninsured adults who are seeking  
   sick or preventive health care; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Health Department’s Homeless Health Care Center  
   meets the qualifications for this grant and provides this service to persons  
   in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has received the authority to   

 distribute increased funds for the provision of these services in Hamilton County.            
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

that the County Mayor be authorized to sign an amendment contract in the amount of $147,292.00 for 
the provision of primary care services to uninsured adults in Hamilton County at the Homeless Health 
Care Center.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 415-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF FAIRWAY OUTDOOR ADVERTISING COMPANY 
FOR A TOBACCO EXPOSURE PREVENTION BILLBOARD CAMPAIGN FOR AN INITIAL TWELVE (12) 
WEEK PERIOD AMOUNTING TO $16,650.00, WITH RENEWAL OPTIONS AMOUNTING TO $27,750.00 
PER CAMPAIGN, FOR THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-
HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a Tobacco Exposure Prevention 

Billboard Campaign for an initial twelve (12) week period amounting to $16,650.00, with the 
option to renew for up to four (4) successive twenty (20) week campaigns through the end of 
calendar year 2016 amounting to $27,750.00 per campaign, for the Health Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee, Department of Health has allocated funds to the Health Services 

Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee for the purpose of purchasing advertising space on 
billboards which promote tobacco use prevention and control; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal from Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company was considered to be the lowest and 

best proposal received; and, 
 
WHEREAS: there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the 

operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning department from 
bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company for an initial twelve (12) week period amounting 
to $16,650.00, with renewal options amounting to $27,750.00 per campaign, for a Tobacco Exposure Prevention 
Billboard Campaign for the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is hereby accepted, said proposal 
being the lowest and best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 415-31 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF SEVENTY FIVE  
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($75,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF A LAWSUIT AGAINST 
HAMILTON COUNTY AS BROUGHT BY NICHOLAS AGOSTINACCHIO, ET AL.  
FOR INJURIES SUSTAINED AS A RESULT OF A FALL ON PROPERTY JOINTLY 
OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA.  
 
WHEREAS,    litigation has been instituted against Hamilton County, Tennessee,  
   and the City of Chattanooga, Tennessee by Nicholas  
   Agostinacchio and wife, Margaret Agostinacchio, for injuries  
   received as a result of a fall that occurred while visiting the area  
   around the Tennessee  Aquarium that is jointly owned by said  
   governmental entities, on or about the 22nd day of September,  
   2007; and  
 
WHEREAS,   through mediation entered into between the attorneys for the  
   parties, said plaintiff has agreed to accept a settlement in the  
   amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) in  
   complete satisfaction of any and all claims that they have, or might  
   have, against Hamilton County, Tennessee, and the City of  
   Chattanooga, Tennessee; and  
 
WHEREAS,   the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County have agreed to  
   equally share in the payment of said settlement, subject to the  
   approval of their respective legislative bodies; 
 
WHEREAS,  this county legislative body feels that the payment of its portion of said 

amount would be in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County, 
and would bring about a fair disposition of this matter. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

 
  That the payment by Hamilton County of Seventy Five Thousand Dollars  
  ($75,000.00) toward the One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars  
  ($150,000.00) total settlement is hereby authorized to be paid to Nicholas  
  and Margaret Agostinacchio, for the full and complete satisfaction of any  
  and all claims against Hamilton County, Tennessee for and related to the  
  physical injuries alleged to have been sustained as a result of a fall that  
  occurred while visiting the area around the Tennessee Aquarium on or  
  about the 22nd day of September, 2007 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-32 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 15, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REPAYMENT TO THE COUNTY GENERAL FUND FROM THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION’S SUBSEQUENT YEAR’S REVENUE 
GROWTH OF APPROPRIATIONS PAID ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION,  
AS APPROVED AND REQUESTED BY THE HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD FOR PUBLIC 
EDUCATION PROJECTS SUBMITTED DURING A CURRENT FISCAL YEAR, AS MAY BE 
APPROVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY. 
 

WHEREAS,  during each Hamilton County (“County”) fiscal year certain funds are 
received by the County which may exceed the previous year’s revenues (as 
generated through real and personal property and sales taxes); and said 
additional revenues are categorized and referred to as “Revenue Growth”; and  

 
WHEREAS,  by the laws of the State of Tennessee said Revenue Growth is delegated and 

proportioned for use between the Hamilton County General Fund, and the 
Hamilton County Department of Education General Fund; and  

 
WHEREAS,  it is the desire of this county legislative body that any funds appropriated by 

this body for academically supportive and/or enhancing projects that have 
been and/or will be presented to, and approved and submitted by, the 
Hamilton County School Board (“Board”) which were not included in said 
Board’s then current fiscal year’s budget be repaid to the County General 
Fund from the Department of Education’s (DOE) property tax revenue 
growth in the immediately following fiscal year budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, this will be accomplished by reducing the DOE’s property tax levy and 

correspondingly increasing the general fund tax levy by the same amount 
sufficient enough to cover these expenditures.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

 
That the procedures utilized by Hamilton County in appropriating post-budget expenditures for 
any funds approved and appropriated by this body for academically supportive or enhancing 
projects that have been and/or will be presented to, and approved and submitted by, the 
Hamilton County School Board (“Board”) and/or the Superintendent of Schools which were not 
included in said Board’s then current fiscal year’s budget be repaid to the County General Fund 
in the following fiscal year budget from revenue growth  by reducing the Department of  
 



 

 

Education’s tax levy and increasing the Hamilton County General Fund tax levy by the same 
amount.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 15, 2015 

  
Date 

 


	4-15-15 Public Agenda Revised 2
	415-_S_Minutes_Agenda Meeting - March 25, 2015 _1510_03-25-15 Agenda
	415-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - March 25, 2015 _1509_03-25-15 Recessed
	415-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - April 1, 2015_1511_04-01-15 Regular
	415-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon April 13 2015_1515_Order of Designation - Planning Commission April 13, 2015 - Todd Leamon
	415-_S_Report_Reports Compliance with ThreeStar Program_1495_1080_001
	415-13_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1514_04-15-15
	415-13_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1514_04-15-15A
	415-14_R_Appointment(s)_The Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals_1491_Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals
	415-14_S_Appointment(s)_The Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals_1491_Joseph G. DeGaetano bio
	415-15_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Thomas Lamb as Director of the Parks and Recreation Department._1504_Appointment Thomas Lamb Director of Parks and Recreation Dept
	415-15_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Thomas Lamb as Director of the Parks and Recreation Department._1504_Thomas A. Lamb, CPRP Bio
	415-16_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Jack Studer to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees._1516_Reappointment Jack Studer
	415-16_S_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Jack Studer to the ChattanoogaHamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees._1516_Jack Studer Bio
	415-17_R_Sheriff Hammond_Vehicle Upfitting Equipment Contract_1496_RES. VEHICLE UPFITTING EQUIPMENT CONTRACT
	415-17_S_Sheriff Hammond_Vehicle Upfitting Equipment Contract_1496_Upfitting Equipment Contract
	415-18_R_Bill Hullander_Delinquent Tax Summons Printing and Processing_1500_RES. DELINQUENT TAX SUMMONS PRINTING & PROCESSING
	415-18_S_Bill Hullander_Delinquent Tax Summons Printing and Processing_1500_Delinquent Tax Summons
	415-19_R_Albert Kiser_Funding for Finley Stadium_1501_Finley Stadium
	415-21_R_Rheubin Taylor_Settlement Authorization re Austin Dakota Wallace_1490_Settlement Authorization (Dakota Wallace)
	415-22_R_Alecia Poe_Auto liability property damage settlement._1498_ResolutionFarmersInsClmsettlement120414
	415-23_R_Todd Leamon_2015 Real Property Sale_1493_RESOLUTION - SOLD PROPERTIES
	415-23_S_Todd Leamon_2015 Real Property Sale_1493_2015 Sold Property List
	415-24_R_Todd Leamon_HVAC Controls Modifications for the Hamilton County Corrections Building_1494_RES. HVAC MODIFICATIONS AT THE H.C. CORRECTIONS BLDG
	415-24_S_Todd Leamon_HVAC Controls Modifications for the Hamilton County Corrections Building_1494_HVAC Controls Modifications at H.C. Corrections Bldg.
	415-25_R_Albert Kiser_ESRI Software Support and Maintenance Contract_1492_RES. ESRI SOFTWARE SUPPORT MAINTENANCE CONTRACT
	415-25_S_Albert Kiser_ESRI Software Support and Maintenance Contract_1492_ESRI Software Support & Maintenance for GIS
	415-26_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel February 2015_1499_Fuel Resolution February 2015
	415-26_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel February 2015_1499_February 2015 docs
	415-27_R_Becky Barnes_Flu Resolution_1503_2015 Flu Resolution
	415-28_R_Becky Barnes_Homeless Health Care HRSA_1505_Homeless Health Care Resolution HRSA 2015
	415-28_S_Becky Barnes_Homeless Health Care HRSA_1505_Homeless Health Care HRSA 2015
	415-29_R_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Homeless Health Care Safety Net_1507_2015 Resolution Safety Net Primary Care
	415-29_S_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Homeless Health Care Safety Net_1507_Homeless Safety Net  Amendement Contract
	415-30_R_Becky Barnes_Tobacco Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign_1513_RES. Tobacco Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign
	415-30_S_Becky Barnes_Tobacco Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign_1513_Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign
	415-31_R_Rheubin Taylor_Agostinacchio Settlement
	415-32_R_Commissioner Graham_Repayment to the County General Fund

